
 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Middleton Township Committee 

Date: Thursday 3rd February 2022 
Time: 6.00 pm. 

 
Venue: Middleton Arena - LCpl Joel Halliwell VC Way, 

Middleton,  Manchester M24 1AG 
 
Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 
 
1   Apologies  

 

 To receive any apologies for absence.  
 
2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

 
3   Urgent Items of Business  

 

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

 
4   Items for Exclusion of Public and Press  

 

 To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

 

 
5   Open Forum  

 

 Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise any 
issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the Township. 

 

 
6   Minutes  3 - 6 

 To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 11th November 2021. 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 
  

7   Results of Residents Parking Consultation - Durnford Street Area, 
Middleton  

7 - 16 

 To consider the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods.  

 

Middleton Township Committee Members 
Councillor Phil Burke Councillor Patricia Mary Dale 
Councillor Neil Emmott Councillor Susan Emmott 
Councillor Peter Joinson Councillor Donna Martin E 
Councillor Kallum Nolan Councillor Linda Robinson 
Councillor Sara Rowbotham Councillor Susan Smith 
Councillor Terrance Smith Councillor Carol Wardle 
Councillor June West Councillor Donna Williams 
Councillor Peter Williams  
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Alison James – Committee Services 
Telephone: 01706 924711 
E-mail: alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk 



MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Thursday 11th November 2021 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor West (Chair); Councillors Burke, Dale, Neil Emmott, 
Susan Emmott, Joinson, Martin, Rowbotham, Wardle, Donna Williams and 
Peter Williams 
 
OFFICERS: L. Mason, A. Webster, G. Broady and M. Bobrowicz 
(Neighbourhoods Directorate), F. Davies (Children’s Services Directorate) and 
A. James (Resources Directorate) 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  14 members of the public 
 

18 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Nolan, Councillor 
Robinson, Councillor Sue Smith and Councillor Terry Smith. 
 

19 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

20 PETER BROWN 
The Committee were informed of the sad news of the recent death of former 
long serving Middleton Councillor, Peter Brown and observed a moment of 
silence in respect of his passing. 
 

21 MINUTES 
The Minutes of the meetings of the Middleton Township Committee held on 
15th July 2021 and 19th August 2021 were considered. 
 
With regard to the minutes of the meeting held on 19th August 2021, 
Councillor Donna Williams commented that she was still a member of the 
Middleton Town Centre Management Board/Middleton Market Board. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the minutes of the meetings of the Middleton Township 
Committee meetings held on 15th July 2021 and 19th August 2021 
be approved and signed as a correct record. 

 
22 OPEN FORUM 

The following matters were raised as part of the Open Forum: 
 

a) Historic Pillars at Archer Park 
 
A number of local residents were in attendance to ask about progress with 
regard to rectifying damage to the historic pillars at Archer Park which had 
been raised previously with the Committee. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



The Senior Highways Officer acknowledged and apologised for the delay in 
progress but was able to confirm that that quotations for the work were 
currently being sought and that the damage to the pillars would be repaired as 
soon as possible. 
 

b) Speeding on Sefton Road 
In response to concerns from local residents relating to speeding traffic in the 
Sefton Road area, the Senior Highways Officer agreed to meet with residents 
on site to discuss the concerns that had been raised. 
 

23 OBJECTION TO PROPOSED TRAFFIC ORDER, INSTALLATION OF 
ZEBRA CROSSING, KIRKWAY, ALKRINGTON, MIDDLETON 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods which 
advised that a representation had been received via Members which had 
raised concern around pedestrian safety (including use by vulnerable road 
users) along the traffic calmed 20mph section of Kirkway, south of its junction 
with Kingsway. 
 
Middleton Township subsequently approved the investigation and 
development of an appropriate scheme. 
 
Through a subsequent site meeting with Members, a Zebra crossing scheme 
was developed and advertised in accordance with Member aspirations for 
enhancing pedestrian safety at the point of an established desire-line to the 
south of the junction. 
 
The approved scheme was advertised formally through a Notice of Intent 
posted on 2nd September 2021. Two objections were received and the report 
provided consideration and appropriate recommendation in relation to the 
scheme. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
The Committee could decide not to introduce the crossing along the desire-
line as proposed then the original concerns raised through Township will not 
be appropriately addressed. 
 
The Committee could seek to change the location of the crossing and it would 
require the legal process to be re-undertaken. It is not thought there are any 
suitable alternative locations near to the desire line along Kingsway to positon 
the crossing. 
 
If the Committee approves the zebra crossing at its proposed location there is 
a requirement to remove the existing raised junction plateau and replace it 
with a flat-top road hump at the crossing point.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



Resolved: 
1. That the objections to the proposed scheme as detailed within the 

submitted report be noted; 
2. That the Traffic Regulation Order, (Borough of Rochdale, (Kirkway, 

Middleton), (Proposed Installation of Zebra Crossing)) be implemented 
as advertised and as detailed within the submitted report; 

3. It be noted that approving the scheme will require an amendment to the 
existing traffic calming features which will require a further period of 
public consultation and that should any objections be received that 
consideration and determination of any objections be delegated to the 
Director of Neighbourhoods in consultation with the Chair of Middleton 
Township Committee and the Portfolio Holder for Highways and 
Facilities. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
The scheme is promoted and recommended as part of the Council’s statutory 
responsibility to ensure that its highways operates safely and efficiently for all 
road users. 
 

24 HIGHWAYS LTP CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022/24 
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Highways / Director of Neighbourhoods which sought approval for the 2022/23 
and 2023/24 of the two year local transport plan (LTP) funded capital 
programme; and the 2 year bridges and structures capital maintenance 
programme.  
 
Members were informed that additional funding for resurfacing had been 
announced and that additional roads for inclusion should be sent directly to 
the Highways Manager. 
 
Alternatives considered 
 
The programme has been developed according to Department for Transport 
guidance and in line with other Greater Manchester Authorities. Any 
amendments would be as a result of the grading undertaken to determine 
priorities. 
 
Resolved 

1. That the local transport plan funded capital programme be approved for 
2022/23 and 2023/24. 

2. That the bridges and structures capital maintenance programme be 
approved for 2022/23 and 2023/24. 

 
 Reason for the decision: 
The schemes that have been selected have been put together based on the 
principles of asset management which use network condition data, engineer 
inspections, life cycle planning and cost efficiency to produce the most 
efficient highway improvement over the course of the programmes. 
 
 

Page 5



25 SECONDARY SCHOOL PLACES 2022 - 2025 
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s 
Services and Education / Director of Children’s Services, consulting the 
Township Committee on the proposed allocation of secondary school places 
2022-2025. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That Cabinet be advised that the Middleton Township Committee 
supports the recommendations as detailed within the submitted report. 

 
26 NEED FOR PRIMARY SCHOOL PLACES 2022-25 

Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s 
Services and Education / Director of Children’s Services, consulting the 
Township Committee on the proposed allocation of primary school places 
2022-2025.  
 
Inflows of pupils arriving into the borough after the start of Reception intake, 
and in higher year groups, have been higher than ever since January 2021, 
leading to significant pressures in older primary school year groups. These ‘in-
year’ school applications plateaued towards the end of the 2019/20 due to the 
pandemic, but had risen to be above previous levels. 
 
 Resolved: 

1. That Cabinet be advised that the Middleton Township Committee 
supports the recommendations as detailed within the submitted report. 

 

Page 6



 

Report to Middleton Township Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 3rd February 2022 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Highways and Housing 
Report Author Darren McCrohan (DMc) 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Results of Residents Parking Consultation - Durnford Street Area, 
Middleton 

 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 

1.1 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
1.4 
 
 
 
1.5 
 
1.6 
 
 

A request was received from Middleton Township for the Council to 
undertake a consultation with local residents of the Dunford Street area 
of Middleton to gauge opinion on a future residents parking scheme.  
 
In recent years concerns have been raised by local residents relating to 
non-resident vehicles parking outside properties in the area during 
working hours. Although this is not illegal and no person has a right to 
reserve a space on the highway, the practice is causing inconvenience 
to local residents 
 
A consultation leaflet was distributed to all residential properties within 
the proposed zone on 20th August 2019. The deadline for responses 
was 12th September 2019. 
 
The overall response rate was 45.7% with 67.78% of respondents voting 
in support of the scheme and 32.22% voting against. The supporters of 
the scheme represent 30.98% of the total number of consultees. 
 
The report outlines the full results of the consultation. 
 
This report is presented following the deferred decision of Middleton 
Township Committee of 13th February 2020.  

 
Recommendation 

 

2. 

 

Based on the results of the consultation, the Committee should decide 
on whether to promote a new Traffic Regulation Order for a Residents 
Only Parking scheme within the Durnford Street area of Middleton. 
 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



Reason for Recommendation 
 
3. Summary of Results 
 
3.1      Total leaflets delivered – 326 
 

Total responses – 149  
(45.7% response) 
 
Yes votes – 101 
(67.78% of total responses) 
(30.98% of total delivered) 
 
No votes – 48 
(32.22% of total responses) 
(14.72% of total delivered) 
 
Preferred hours of operation 
24 hours              70 (67.31%) 
9am-10pm          17 (16.35%) 
9am- 5pm           15 (14.42%) 
8am-8pm             1 (0.96%) 
8am-6pm             1 (0.96%) 
 
Total                     104 (x3 residents voted No but still filled this section in) 
 
Preferred days of operation 
7 days                  80 (77.67%) 
Mon-Fri                13 (12.62) 
Mon-Sat              10 (9.71%) 
 
Total                     103 (x2 residents voted No but still filled this section in) 

 
 

Key Points for Consideration 
 
4. 
 
 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The public consultation has returned a level of support of 67.78%. The 
current Council policy states that proposed schemes should require 
support from at least 65% of returned consultation votes. 
 
It should be noted that in considering the results, although the criteria of 
65% has been met, the number of supporters represents 31% of the 
total number of households consulted.  
 
Two previous consultations resulted in a level of support below 65%. 
 
Middleton Township has not commissioned the Council to undertake a 
BEAT survey. This is usually carried out to support whether or not there 
is a robust justification for removing the ability of the general public to 
park on the affected streets and to provide a privilege to residents only. 
The residents parking criteria states that 75% of the kerb side space 
must be un-available for more than 3 hours per day. 
 

Page 8



4.4 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 

The majority of respondents voted for a scheme to be made operational 
24 hours a day 7 days a week. 
 
Members are reminded that the proposal would need to be legally 
advertised in the press and that anyone (not just residents) are able to 
object to the introduction of the scheme and an objection report would 
be brought to Middleton Township for resolution as part of the statutory 
traffic regulation order making process. 
 
A copy of the consultation leaflet and summary of comments received 
are attached at Appendix B and C of this report, respectively. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
There is no statutory requirement for the Council as Highway Authority 
to provide parking to any individual. 

 
Members could choose to explore other forms of managing on-street 
parking, such as limited waiting parking bays and no waiting at any time 
restrictions. 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. 
 
 
5.1 
 
 

Should the Committee choose to promote a new residents parking 
scheme, funding has already been allocated from Middleton Township. 
 
Should Committee decide not to proceed with the promotion of a 
residents parking scheme then the remaining funding can be returned to 
Middleton Township. 
 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate 
safely and efficiently, for all traffic including pedestrians. 
 

6. 

 
Consultation 

 
7. 
 
 
7.1 
 
7.2 
 

Consultation leaflets were distributed to 326 households on 20th August 
2019. 
 

The consultation period ended on 12th September 2019. 
 
Total leaflets delivered – 326  
 
Total responses – 149 
(45.7% response) 
 
Yes votes – 101 
(67.78% of total responses) 
(30.98% of total delivered) 

Page 9



 
No votes – 48 
(32.22% of total responses) 
(14.72% of total delivered) 
 

 
 
 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 
None  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



APPENDIX  A – Copy of consultation leaflet and plan 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 11



 
 

Page 12



 
 

Page 13



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



APPENDIX  B – Summary of comments from residents 
 
 
This is the 3rd consultation. Seem unable to accept results. Manipulating vote 
percentages and extent of zone in an attempt to achieve the answer you want is 
undemocratic 

Request for 20mph zone in addition 

Parking is already difficult in Middleton. Residents are selfish in requesting a 
permit scheme 

Scheme would make it difficult for visitors to park and leave me isolated 

Staff and visitors to the clinic create parking problems 

How will it be policed 

Obstruction to driveways is a problem 

Parking problems are caused by the school 

Shoppers use the area 

Residents of Ninian and Exeter Courts should be excluded from the scheme 

I have a driveway so I am not affected 

Not necessary. I can always find a space to park and don’t expect to park 
outside my own house 

Agree if parking is allowed on both sides of the street 

Would prefer if first permit was automatically issued to every address 

Already pay council tax so should not have to pay for visitors to park 

Not beneficial for Mirfield Drive 

Charge of £25 per for permits is scandalous 

Should be 2 free permits 

Residents of flats and office workers park in the area 

Should be one permit per house 

Where do family and friends park 

Proposed double yellow lines at junction of Mirfield Drive and Durnford Street 
would make it impossible to clean my car outside my garage 

I struggle to park outside my house 

Parking would be helped by removing yellow lines 

Lever Street is constantly congested 

No need for this expense 

Main congestion problems are at Mellalieu Street and Long Street 

Page 15



Disagree with removing disabled bays 

Problems are caused by households having too many cars 

Should be limited to 2 permits each 

Scheme is a form of taxation 

Should be 2 free permits per household 

Parking problems also occur evening, overnight and weekends 

Experience of residents parking schemes in other towns is that they create more 
problems than they solve 

No benefit to residents of Mellalieu Street 

Parking is not an issue on Durnford Street 

Parking on Mellalieu Street is caused by the 32 apartments and all will be 
eligible for permits 

Parking meters on Old Boars Head car park and long stay parking on Long 
Street is becoming an issue 

I hope that the map of lines is accurate so some yellow lines are removed 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 16


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	7 Results of Residents Parking Consultation - Durnford Street Area, Middleton

